
 

HOUSING, ENVIRONMENT AND HEALTHY 
COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE AGENDA 
 
 
Monday, 11 March 2024 at 5.30 pm in the Bridges Room - Civic Centre 
 
From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey 
Item 
 

Business 
  

1   Apologies for Absence  
  

2   Minutes of the last meeting (Pages 3 - 8) 
  

3   Declarations of Interest  
 
Committee members to declare an interest in any particular agenda item where 
applicable 
  

4   Flood & Water Management Act 2010 - Annual Progress Report (Pages 9 - 
12) 
 
Report of the Strategic Director of Housing, Environment and Healthy 
Communities 
  

5   Housing Development in Gateshead (Presentation)  
  

6   Work Programme (Pages 13 - 16) 
 
Joint report of the Chief Executive and the Strategic Director of Corporate 
Services & Governance 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact: Melvyn Mallam-Churchill, Tel: 0191 433 2149, 
Email: democraticservicesteam@gateshead.gov.uk, Date: Friday, 1 March 2024 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

HOUSING, ENVIRONMENT AND HEALTHY COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
Monday, 29 January 2024 

 
 
PRESENT: Councillor B Clelland (Chair) 
  
 Councillor(s): T Graham, A Geddes, F Geddes, D Burnett, 

H Weatherley, H Kelly, J Turnbull, K Dodds, S Dickie, 
V Anderson, P Maughan, A Wintcher, S Gallagher, P Burns, 
K Walker and L Brand 

  
IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor(s):  D Robson 
  
APOLOGIES: Councillor(s): D Welsh 
  
CPL94 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  

 
 The minutes of the last Committee held on 4 December 2023 were agreed as a 

correct record. 
  

CPL95 COMMUNITY SAFETY BOARD - STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 2023/24 (UPDATE)  
 

 The Committee received a report providing an overview of key activities that have 
been coordinated on behalf of the Gateshead Community Safety Board since 
September 2023 to tackle the strategic priorities outlined within the Partnership Plan 
2023/24. 
  
A summary of the strategic themes/priorities agreed by the Community Safety Board 
for 2023/24 was provided, these were: 

·         Tackling serious violence 
·         Thriving communities 
·         Protecting people from harm 
·         Strengthening governance and accountability arrangements 

  
From the report, the Committee were also provided with crime and disorder 
performance data in Gateshead for the period of April 2023 – December 2023. It 
was noted that recorded crime in Gateshead had increased by 4% which is lower 
than the 5% increase experienced across Northumbria. 
  
The Committee received additional information and context on activities undertaken 
to address the strategic themes and priorities. Additional details were also provided 
on how the priorities are being achieved via strategic means i.e. via the Hate Crime 
Strategy and also Locality Working. 
  
A comment was made noting the positive impact on crime due to Locality Working 
within the south of the borough; it was highlighted that Locality Coordinators had 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

also consulted with ward members on activities and schemes and had set up 
successful community-based events. The Committee were reminded that Locality 
Working is to be rolled out across the borough and that a joint approach was being 
taken between the Council, the voluntary sector, local businesses and other 
partners. 
  
A query was raised in relation to the impact of Safer Streets Funding and its effect 
on anti-social behaviour (ASB). Officers advised that a collaborative approach with 
Northumbria Police and mental health services had been taken on this to address 
low-level ASB. The Committee acknowledged that ASB was still a prevalent issue 
for residents in Gateshead and noted that many residents do not report ASB due to 
fear of the repercussions from perpetrators.  
  
A discussion took place on the Council’s approach to preventing radicalisation within 
the communities of Gateshead. It was noted that the Council provides training to 
frontline staff involved with vulnerable groups e.g. social workers and that regular 
contact is maintained with partners, schools and Northumbria Police and that 
information is shared where necessary. The Committee were also reminded of the 
Council’s approach to ‘Prevent’ and the channels that cases go through when 
brought to the attention of staff. 
  
Concern was noted from the Committee on the levels of youth disorder in Dunston; 
officers advised that a joint bid was being prepared with voluntary and community 
sector partners to secure funding for ‘hardening resources’ in this area so that 
residents can be given items to make them feel safer, this includes outdoor lighting 
and video-doorbells for their homes. 
  
A further query was raised in relation to the support that is being offered to victims of 
crime and disorder; officers advised that they would provide a response to this 
specific query outside of the meeting. 
  
RESOLVED: 

(i)        The Committee noted the contents of the report. 
(ii)       The Committee agreed to receive six-monthly Community Safety Updates. 

  
CPL96 STREET LIGHTING UPDATE  

 
 The Committee received a report providing an overview of the impact of changes to 

street lighting in line with light pollution considerations and the potential impact of 
reduced street lighting on community safety and perceptions of crime and disorder. 
  
From the report, the Committee were advised of the principal objectives of the 
provision and maintenance of street lighting. This included the provision of safe 
networks for all users and vulnerable groups and to sustain the night time economy 
of the borough. It was also highlighted that street lighting can be used to promote 
safety and security, in both urban and rural areas, and that it can also help increase 
quality of life by artificially extending the hours in which it is light so that activities can 
take place. 
  
The Committee were advised that street lighting engineers follow industry guidelines 

Page 4



 

set out in British Standard (BS) 5489-1:2020 that considers pedestrian and traffic 
safety when designing Street lighting levels. It was also noted that as part of the 
Council’s 2023 vision, it is planned to make Gateshead carbon neutral by 2025 and 
that to achieve this a Carbon Management Plan was established. 
  
On the matter of community safety, it was reported that the national evidence base 
surrounding the impact of reduced street lighting on crime and disorder is not strong 
with questions concerning potential crime preventive effects of lighting initiatives 
remain unanswered. 
 
Information in relation to the dimming of street lights was provided from the report, 
the Committee also noted that between January and March 2023 a Community 
Safety Survey was launched which asked residents to pinpoint areas in Gateshead 
where they felt unsafe and the potential reasons why. It was reported that of the 472 
responses received 38% of people cited poorly lit areas as a potential reason for 
feeling unsafe/avoiding an area. 
 
The Committee noted its concern on the dimming of street lights and the 
implications on residents who feel unsafe as a result. Committee members 
acknowledged the Council’s aims with regards to being carbon neutral but felt that 
the dimming of street lights was not the answer. Officers noted that they had 
received some queries from residents direct in relation to the dimming of street 
lights; it was explained that in many cases residents have perceived that the street 
lights near their home have been dimmed when they have not. 
 
The Committee agreed to informally refer the issue of street lights and community 
safety back to Cabinet for further consideration in future based on the discussion 
and views shared at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: 

(i)          The Committee noted the report. 
  
  

CPL97 UPDATE ON THE COUNCIL'S ALLOTMENT SERVICE  
 

 The Committee received a report providing an update on the work of the Council’s 
Allotments Officer and the allotments service. 
  
From the report, the Committee were advised of the following: 
  
• There are 594 people on the waiting list (this includes 215 applications 

received since October 2022) 
• Between October 2022 and October 2023, 120 waiting list applicants have 

been allocated a plot 
• Where possible, some larger plots have been split into more manageable sizes 

to help reduce the waiting list and increase revenue 
• Those on the waiting list are contacted regularly  
• There are currently no lettable vacant plots available that are suitable for 

Page 5



 

cultivation 
  
An overview of the updated tenancy agreement was provided to the Committee. It 
was highlighted that most allotment holders manage their plot in line with the 
Council’s expectations and their tenancy agreement. It was also noted that the 
updated tenancy agreement is to be issued to new allotment holders only to ensure 
gradual improvement in plots but that the improvements will also be encouraged 
amongst existing plot holders. The Committee further noted that the updated 
tenancy agreement has been approved by the Allotment Association. 
  
The Committee were also provided with updates on the new tenancy agreement in 
relation to vehicles and tires, beekeeping, bonfires/fires and cultivation. Further 
updates were also reported on ongoing issues being addressed by the Council’s 
allotments officer, this included the management of overgrown plots and sites with 
horses. It was highlighted that within Gateshead there are 2 sites with horses (Leam 
Lane Stock and the Hurrocks). 
  
A query was raised in relation to the sub-letting of plots; officers were advised that 
were the allotments officer is made aware of sub-letting this would be investigated 
and that regular appointments would be made with the tenant to ensure that the plot 
is being used by them as per their tenancy agreement.  
  
The Committee also questioned the reasons as to why an allotment plot may be 
unlettable; officers explained that this was largely due to the ground conditions at the 
plot and the condition of surrounding infrastructure and vegetation. 
  
The Committee thanked the Council’s allotments officer for their hard work and 
praised the service for the improvements that have been made to the allotments 
service to date. 
  
RESOLVED: 

(i)               The Committee noted the progress reported. 
   

CPL98 BUILDING SAFETY AND COMPLIANCE  
 

 The Committee received a report providing an update on the current building safety 
and compliance position with the Council’s housing stock. 
  
From the report, the Committee noted the following: 
  
• All Gateshead Council high-rise blocks have been registered with the Building 

Safety Regulator  
• Gateshead Council have taken part in a pilot scheme with the Health and Safety 

Executive looking at the content and layout of the Safety Case Report 
• The Building Safety Regulator is to assess all high-rise buildings in the UK over a 

5 year period from April 2024 
• Significant works have taken place to meet the requirements of current legislation 

and regulation; including an ongoing fire risk assessment programme 
• An annual flat front door inspection programme is in place and is on target 
• A quarterly inspection programme of fire doors is in place and is on target 

Page 6



 

• The high-rise fire detection system, within dwellings, complies with regulation 
• New compliance software is in the process of implementation with a target date 

of 2024 
  
The Committee also noted updates in relation to compliance from the report; it was 
highlighted that of the six key compliance areas there are no areas of high risk.  
  
The Committee queried what the worst-case scenario would be should the building 
regulator find a high-rise that was not compliant with regulations. Officers advised 
that residents of that block would need to be decanted from the building into another 
suitable accommodation but that this outcome is not expected within Gateshead 
based on the current state of play. 
  
The Committee were advised that update reports are provided on building safety 
and compliance progress via Portfolio. 
  
RESOLVED: 

(i)               The Committee noted the report. 
  

CPL99 WORK PROGRAMME  
 

 The Committee received a report which provided details on development of the work 
programme for OSC’s and the provisional work programme for Housing, 
Environment and Healthy Communities OSC for the municipal year 2023/24. 
  
The Committee were also advised verbally that the consultation on items for the 
2024/25 Work Programme would be starting soon. 
  
RESOLVED: 

(i) The Committee noted the Work Programme. 
 

 
 
 

Chair……….……………….. 
 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



HOUSING, ENVIRONMENT & 
HEALTHY COMMUNITIES OSC 

11 March 2024 
 
 
TITLE OF REPORT: Flood & Water Management Act 2010 – Annual Progress Report 

 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. To report progress in the implementation of the duties & responsibilities of 

Gateshead Council as lead local flood authority. 
 
Background  
 
2. Following the introduction of the Flood & Water Management 2010 the committee 

has received annual reports outlining: 
• Gateshead Council’s statutory responsibilities & duties in relation to local flood 

risk management (FRM), following the introduction of the Flood & Water 
Management Act 2010 (F&WMA); 

• the duties for local authority scrutiny committees to review work by public sector 
bodies & essential service providers in order to manage flood risk and to 
prepare an annual report on local actions to manage flood risk. 

3. Under the F&WMA each unity authority or county council is identified as the lead 
local flood authority (LLFA) for their district and they are expected to provide 
leadership & accountability for local FRM regarding surface water, groundwater & 
ordinary watercourses.   

4. The Service Director of Highways & Waste is Gateshead Council’s lead officer: the 
Highway & Flood Risk Management team is managing the function. 

 
Lead local flood authority duties 
 
5. The key implications of the legislation for local authorities are: 

• preparing, maintaining & publishing a local FRM strategy to link to the 
Environment Agency’s (EA) national and to link to local strategies; 

• preparing, maintaining & publishing a register of third party FRM infrastructure 
assets; 

• investigating reported flooding incidents & publishing a register of investigations; 
• statutory consultee to the local planning authority (LPA) for sustainable drainage 

systems (SuDS); 
• consenting of ordinary watercourse works (diverting, culverting, restricting flow); 
• cooperation with & oversight of other FRM bodies. 

 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



Local flood risk management strategy 
 
6. Gateshead’s local flood risk management strategy (LFRMS) was approved by full 

Council in January 2017.   
7. The strategy is currently being revised & updated to reflect recent guidance from 

the Local Government Association.  The strategy is being prepared jointly with 
Newcastle City Council: it will be completed in the coming months.    

 
Register of third-party flood risk management infrastructure 
 
8. The register must include location, size, condition & ownership details of drainage 

infrastructure (river embankments, walls, revetments, culverts etc.) that prevent or 
limit flooding on ordinary watercourses.  The register has been established and 
work is ongoing to survey, identify & map critical assets.   

 
Investigation of flood incidents 
 
9. Informal flooding investigations are regularly undertaken by the FRM team.  These 

typically result in the identification of small-scale improvement works or general 
advice to customers. 

10. Formal flooding investigations must be carried out for significant flooding events (as 
defined in the LFRMS).  A flooding event report must also be published & 
distributed to other relevant flood risk management authorities.  No formal flooding 
investigations were undertaken & reported in 2023 but a report will be prepared for 
the 08 September storm (Great North Run day).   

 
Sustainable drainage systems statutory consultee  
 
11. Sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) are natural or manmade green infrastructure 

features designed to store water or discharge water to the ground to limit flows to 
downstream drainage systems: examples include soakaways, ponds, & swales.  
SuDS also have the benefit of improving water quality. 

12. The UK Government introduced regulations in April 2015 requiring major 
developments to incorporate SuDS as part of the site surface water management 
systems.  The regulations established the LPA as the body responsible for 
approving SuDS and the LLFA became a statutory consultee for the SuDS approval 
process.  A dedicated officer is employed in the Spatial Planning & Environment 
team for LLFA SuDS consultation replies. 

13. Recent UK Government planning guidance has reinforced the importance of SuDS 
for sustainable development.  The UK Government will shortly be undertaking a 
consultation for the adoption of new SuDS by local authorities.  The likelihood is 
that local authorities will be compelled to approve, adopt & maintain SuDS for all 
major developments.  The consultation process, development of design guides & 
the implementation of new regulations may take several years and will almost 
certainly be delayed beyond this year’s general election. 

Page 10



 
Consenting of ordinary watercourse works 
 
14. Consenting procedures have been developed in conjunction with the EA.  Typically 

five or six applications each year are received for the culverting or diversion of small 
lengths of watercourses. 

 
Scrutiny & oversight of other FRM bodies 
 
15. Biannual liaison meetings take place with officers from the FRM team & officers 

from the EA & Northumbrian Water. 
16. Regional groups of LLFA officers meet quarterly to share best practise, experience 

& local knowledge.  The groups include officers (and members) with expertise in 
FRM, development management, planning policy & environmental management. 

 
Recommendations 
 
17. It is recommended that the Housing, Environment & Healthy Communities OSC:  

• notes the statutory responsibilities of Gateshead Council for local FRM and the 
measures taken to comply with those duties; 

• receives an annual progress report in March 2025. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CONTACT:  Jimmy Young, Highway & Flood Risk Management 

Team Leader 
EXTENSION: 3073 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

              
 
 
 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  Work Programme 
 
REPORT OF: Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive  

Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services and 
Governance 

 
Summary 

 
The report sets out the provisional work programme for the Housing, Environment and 
Healthy Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the municipal year 2023/24. 
 
 
 
1. The Committee’s provisional work programme was endorsed at the meeting held on 19 

June 2023 and Councillors have agreed that further reports will be brought to future 
meetings to highlight current issues / identify any changes/additions to this programme.  

 
2. Appendix 1 sets out the work programme as it currently stands and highlights proposed 

changes to the programme in bold and italics for ease of identification.    
 
Recommendations  
 
3.  The Committee is asked to 
 

a) Note the provisional programme;  
 

b) Note that further reports on the work programme will be brought to the Committee 
to identify any additional policy issues, which the Committee may be asked to 
consider. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Contact: Melvyn Mallam-Churchill Extension: 2149 
 
 
 

HOUSING, ENVIRONMENT & 
HEALTHY COMMUNITIES OSC

11 March 2024

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

 

DRAFT Housing Environment & Healthy Communities OSC Work Programme 2023-24 
19 June 
2023 
 

• Performance Management and Improvement Framework – Year 
End Performance 2022-23  

• Housing Design and Energy Efficient Standards 
• Housing Key Performance Indicator Target Setting 2023/24 
• Changing Futures, MCN and Homelessness (focus on linkages and 

impacts and join up) 
• Work Programme 

11 
September 
2023 
 
 

• Community Safety priorities update / progress  
• Lifelong Learning (focus on; 

-  what is available academically and physically 
- Is there a clear picture of provision across the borough)  

• Parking enforcement – Update (focus on; 
- what can be done to prevent pavement parking 
- how can we better enforce / do we need additional powers? 
- Plan / projected timescales / measuring success)  

• Brexit Update (Information Only) 
• Work Programme 

23 October 
2023  

• Construction Services Update - Repairs and Maintenance 
Improvement Plan Progress Update 

• Damp & Mould Compliance 
• Locality Working (focus on progress and any impacts) 
• Work Programme 

4 
December 
2023 
 

• Performance Management and Improvement Framework – Six 
Month Update – 2023-24 

• Housing Complaint Update 
• Housing and Compliance Performance Monitoring Q2  
• Council Voids (deep dive into whole end to end process) 
• Work Programme 

29 January 
2024 
 
 

• Community Safety priorities update/progress  
• Update on Allotments  
• Street lighting in relation to Community Safety 
• Building Safety Compliance and Assurance in Council Homes  
• Update on new approach to anti-social behaviour  
• Work Programme 

11 March 
2024 
 

• The Flood and Water Management Act 2010: Annual Progress 
Report 

• Housing Development in Gateshead 
• Work Programme 

13 May 
2024  
 

• Housing and Compliance Performance Monitoring Q4 (to include; 
a) Operational Performance  
b) Compliance Performance  
c) Regulatory Self – Assessment) 

• Housing Complaint Update 
• Tenant Satisfaction Survey Results 2023  
• Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan (to include; 

Fleet, community EV provision and infrastructure School catering (plant 
based alternatives to meat / cheese  
Impact of domestic fires / log burning  
Local transport networks and encouraging connectivity without car 

Page 15



Appendix 1 

 

dependency  
Public transport and connectivity 

• Work Programme 
 
To be heard via a Joint Committee of HEHC OSC and Corporate Resources OSC 
(Date TBC): 
 

• Economic Development/Physical Development and Regeneration (Deferred 
from March 2024) 

 
Issues for 2024/25 Work Programme: 

 
• Housing Allocations – May / June 2024 
• Update on Environmental Enforcement – Sept 2024 
• Street Scene Investment Impacts  
• Housing Regulatory Standards (Self-Assessment)  

 
 

Page 16


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the last meeting
	4 Flood & Water Management Act 2010 - Annual Progress Report
	Purpose of the Report

	6 Work Programme
	REPORT OF:	Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive
	Summary
	Recommendations
	2023.08.29 - Apx 1 2023-24 Draft Work Prog HEHC OSC


